
CITY OF PITTSBURGH/ALLEGHENY COUNTY 

TASK FORCE ON DISABILITIES 

SEPTEMBER 22, 2008 

MINUTES 

 

 

Location:  First Floor Conference Room 

   Civic Building, 200 Ross Street 

   Pittsburgh, PA 

 

 

Members Present: Paul O’Hanlon, Chairperson, Katherine D. Seelman, Co-chair, James C. 

Noschese, Jeff Parker  

  
Members Absent: Aurelia Carter, Linda Dickerson; Janet Evans, Liz Healey, Milton 

Henderson, Sarah Goldstein, Rich McGann, John Tague 

 

  

Others Present: Holly Dick, Val Gawlas, Carol Horowitz, Dianne Gallagher, Larry 

Hockenberry, Charles Keenan, Linda Lee, Danielle Lengle, Amanda 

Leskovac, Richard Meritzer, Charles Morrison, Teresa Nellans, Terry 

Reynolds, Tamara Siegert, Lucy Spruill, Mary Esther Van Shura 

 

 

The meeting was called to order by Mr. O’Hanlon at 1:05 PM.        

 

INTRODUCTIONS: 

 

Everyone introduced themselves. Mr. O’Hanlon read the agenda.  

 

FINANCIAL REPORT: 

 

The Treasurer was unable to attend due to a family emergency so the report was postponed.   

 

MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING: 

 

The July minutes were presented.  The August minutes were still not prepared.  Mr. Noschese 

moved to ACCEPT THE JULY MINUTES.  Mr. Parker seconded the motion.  There was some 

discussion as to whether the Task Force could approve the minutes without a quorum.  It was 

decided they would proceed and the motion was approve unanimously.   

 

 

DEVELOPING A PROCESS TO ADDRESS DEAF AND HARD OF HEARING 

ACCOMMODATION ISSUES: 

 

Mr. O’Hanlon reported that we have had a number of accommodation issues related to the Deaf, 

Deafblind and Hard of Hearing communities.  The Task Force has been working on interpreters 

in the jail and issues with hospital and medical facilities.  Issues with the Airport and the 

Convention Center have come up.  And we have had discussions about the problems with water 

authorities in the area.  With the exception of hospitals these are all publicly owned facilities.  We 

have had a variety of conversations, but no real strategy.  Ken Puckett has suggested a Saturday 

meeting to strategize.  How do we create a process? 

 



                                                                                                                            September 22, 2008 Page  

 

2 

Mr. Noschese added when the Americans with Disabilities Act was first signed different services 

were established, including TTYs.  Public funds were allocated for these programs.  Now that 

technology is old.  We need newer technology covered in places like the Airport, Heinz Field, 

PNC Park, etc.  Things like video phones.  We need to encourage them to do this.  Mr. O’Hanlon 

asked how we move those issues forward.  Dr. Seelman suggested we get coverage in the local 

newspapers.  She will lay out advances for someone to write an article.  We use this technology 

but people outside the community do not know about it.  We should go through someone with 

authority, like Ken Puckett.  Mr. Parker responded we have a list of problem areas.  We should 

identify what is required at each different site and make them provide the accessibility that is 

required.    

 

Mr. Noschese added people who are deaf do not use TTYs anymore.   Mr. O’Hanlon responded 

the issues at the Airport are both videophones versus the new technology and effective 

communication throughout the Airport.  Is plane information or lost items announced in any 

written format?  If a traveler is having a problem, is there anyone to facilitate communication?  If 

we are going to meet with the Airport Authority we need to identify goals.  Otherwise the issue 

becomes a moving target.  Ms. Nellans disagreed with Mr. Noschese.   People with hearing loss 

still use TTYs.  First you need to get the facts.  We need to do fact-finding with a broad range of 

disabilities.  Mr. Noschese added the Airport has no TTYs.  Dr. Seelman said we need to focus on 

the Airport.  We are working on the hospital issue.   There are legal requirements for both.  Find 

out what the legal requirements are and what a model Airport has.  The discussion can include 

this issue with other upgrades.  Ms. Gallagher added a security officer needed to find a TTY and 

nobody knew where one was.  Now there are only one or two TTYs but they are only required in 

every bank of four phones.  Ms. Spruill responded that the requirement for 1 TTY in a bank of 

four phones was written in the 1990s, before the proliferation of cell phones.  Pay phones are 

disappearing.  There is a dangerous lack of communication.  That standard no longer makes any 

sense.  Ms. Lengle stated the International Building Code (IBC) web site has the latest standard, 

but she does not believe it has changed.  Dr. Seelman pointed out there is a new piece of 

legislation pending, COAT, which updates telecommunication standards.   

 

Mr. O’Hanlon acknowledged there are a range of issues regarding the Airport.  Moving from the 

Airport to the Convention Center, we have a similar but different list of issues.  How much do we 

want to make this a broad focus or do we want to focus on the Airport.  Both are run by Public 

Authorities connected to the County.  These are real issues that affect real people.  Ms. Lengle 

responded this is an education process.  If they are holding an event they should know the law.  

They need a letter form the Task Force.  Mr. O’Hanlon said he was not sure that is the role of the 

Task Force.  The Airport, Convention Center and Sports and Exhibition Authority are county 

entities.  We should use the contracting process of the Special Events permits.  That is the 

process.  Mr. Meritzer added that is a difference between accommodations for events and 

everyday accessibility.  Dr. Seelman said she liked the direction the Task Force was going in, 

working with public authorities.  Do we want to focus on one Authority?  She uses her telephone 

for texting, not talking because she can’t hear.  Landline telephones are disappearing.  Everything 

is internet based.  It is not getting any simpler.  We should find a model airport and get highlights 

regarding upgrade problems.   



                                                                                                                            September 22, 2008 Page  

 

3 

 

Mr. O’Hanlon stated the Airport issues are mostly regarding people who are deaf or hard of 

hearing.  Are there groups already working on these issues?  If there are, is there something 

unique about who we are?  Dr. Seelman said no.  The Nation Association of the Deaf has been 

working on these issues but from a structural change standpoint.  Karen Strauss wrote a book that 

all politics is local.  Mr. O’Hanlon agreed that he lives with the experience that we can do things 

better at the local level.  Mary Esther Van Shura added if the Task Force can delineate issues she 

will meet with us to facilitate the discussion.  Teresa said they have discussed the issue but did 

not follow up on it.   She just had a horrible airplane trip.  The National Hearing Loss Association 

has a form and she can hand out that form or develop a local form.  Amanda Leskovac added [as 

someone who uses a wheel chair] she has had terrible problems as well.  She has sat at airports 

and missed plane because no one is assigned to help her.  Mr. Noschese stated these issues should 

not be separate.  They should all be included as one in accommodation.  Ms. Spruill said the TTY 

issue is closely linked to signage for accessible facilities.  It is very likely the TTY is somewhere.  

There should be signage everywhere as to where the TTY is.   

 

Mr. O’Hanlon asked do we want to start a process that focuses on the Airport or on the big four 

facilities?  How much do we want to focus?  Dr. Seelman responded that this is a resource issue.  

To what extent can we get staff support?  Mr. Meritzer said that is an issue of people and space.  

If he had more interns and volunteers and places to put them he could give the Task Force more 

support.  United Cerebral Palsy has offered space in the past, so with more interns and volunteers 

he could take them up on their offer.  Mr. O’Hanlon stated there are a number of issues that are 

hot right now.  The Airport should be moved on.   We have a level of commitment for the jail.  

He suggested we begin the process by focusing on the Airport and the jail.  We should set up a 

special agenda meeting.  Dr. Seelman suggested if the issue with the jail is remote interpreters, 

we can discuss with them getting a second contract for interpreters.  Mr. Noschese added that 

people who are deaf do not like remote interpreters.  Larry Hockenberry said when you are 

talking about the Airport or the Jail deaf people can not hear announcements in corridors or 

restaurants. He had experiences in jail as a volunteer with the Pennsylvania Jail Society.  They 

separate the deaf population and they are isolated.  They can not hear if anyone is behind them.  

There is no captioning on the television.  They do not know when breakfast is since they do not 

hear the announcement so they can sleep through and miss it.   

 

Mr. O’Hanlon asked if we should focus on one or both.  He recommended we focus on both.  Dr. 

Seelman pointed out that Mr. McGann was not here and he has broader issues regarding the deaf 

community.  She made a motion that THE CITY OF PITTSBURGH / ALLEGHENY COUNTY 

TASK FORCE ON DISABILITIES PROCEED TO WORK ON ACCESSIBILITY ISSUES FOR 

THE DEAF, DEAFBLIND AND HARD OF HEARING COMMUNITIES IN BOTH THE JAIL 

AND THE AIRPORT.  Mr. O’Hanlon added we can further review this at the next meeting.  Mr. 

Parker suggested the Jail Committee be reconvened.  Then look at the Airport and the Convention 

Center and do fact finding.  This could be another group.  Dr. Seelman suggested that if the 

problem is remote interpreting services we should send a letter to the jail.  He may not realize the 

limitation.  Mr. O’Hanlon said that is fine.  But do we need any further discussion on this issue.  

We may need both.  The other issue of the TTYs has been raised.  Without knowing about that 

issue are we able to write that letter?  Dr. Seelman asked do we want to work issue by issue or try 

to solve all the issues at once.  At the meeting there were signing deaf and they did not bring up 

this issue.  Ms. Gallagher informed the group the Amy Hart of Center for Hearing and Deaf 

Services and Joanne Lengle of Sign Language Interpreting Professions (SLIP) are writing a letter 

about deaf talk.  Dr. Seelman asked if they could carbon copy the letter to the Task Force.  We 

need to compare the utility of both services under the same conditions.  The technology is not 

available for people who can’t see the screen. 

 

 



                                                                                                                            September 22, 2008 Page  

 

4 

Mr. O’Hanlon asked Mr. Meritzer to investigate a date for a Saturday meeting and develop an 

invitation list.  He was struck by the meeting with Warden Rustin that he was a genuine guy.  The 

meeting was useful and productive.  We can give useful information to the jail.  We should defer 

discussion of whether they should also tackle the airport.  Mr. Noschese said he has been 

educating the guards about these issues.  We can’t ignore the issues.  Mr. Hockenberry added that 

Ken Puckett could not be there today because of another meeting.  The State Jail System has 

flashing lights in the cells for when the gate opens of for meals.  The County does not.  Ms. Van 

Shura said the committee that has worked with the Jail has been very gracious.  And the jail has 

been very open and responsive.  The Airport is a different issue since they do not report directly 

to the County Executive.  Mr. O’Hanlon stated we have reach consensus.  We will send a letter to 

the jail.  We will review the issue at the next meeting and set up a meeting for the Airport.  Dr. 

Seelman added the Ms. Lengle is going to look the telephone issue up on the web.  People who 

are deaf, hard of hearing or blind all have funny stories.  Mr. O’Hanlon summarized that we will 

explore a Saturday meeting and this will be an interactive process primarily on Airport issues. 

  

ELECTION PREPAREDNESS 

 

Ms. Van Shura reported that of the 1321 polling locations only 7 are inaccessible.   

 

Mr. O’Hanlon reported the Election is November 4
th
.  The last day to register is October 6

th
.  

Getting registered is crucial.  Pennsylvania is one of the few States that does not have an 

alternative to Election Day voting.  When you have any dealings with the Bureau of Motor 

Vehicles, you are presented with a voter registration opportunity.  This revolutionized voter 

registration.  But the problem is 94.7% of the registrations come from the Bureau of Motor 

Vehicles.  All other agencies (Area Agencies on Aging, schools, Para transit services, Mental 

Health / Mental Retardation services, etc.) have very low numbers of registrations.  Last year 

there were no registrations from Area Agencies on Aging or schools.  And for the first time there 

were two registrations from disability organizations and three from Para transit services.  There is 

a code on the form they should mark and most agencies do not know the code.  Everyone should 

talk to them about what they are doing for voter registration.  What is the message our elected 

officials take away from these numbers when they consider funding.  We are losing ground.  This 

is not a neutral factor. 

 

Ms. Gallagher asked that if different agencies have a code, what about different populations?   

How do they let that be known?  Mr. O’Hanlon responded the codes are only by the agencies that 

register them.  We are a mobile society who needs to reregister.  We will not capture everybody, 

but each agency should be showing some numbers.  We do a disservice to voting if we vote 

because a candidate deserves out vote.  We should vote to stand up for our community.  Ms. 

Gallagher pointed out that groups like the deaf community don’t work through agencies.  Mr. 

Noschese added that he has voted in every election since he was 18.  How do they recognize his 

vote?  Mr. O’Hanlon explained elements of who votes are based on polling.  There is a lack of 

polling data of people with disabilities.  There is not any data that people with disabilities are 

registered so they do not calculate the surveys of our community.  The Census shows that of the 

voting age population 20% have disabilities.  That is more the voters 56 year old or older or 

African Americans.   



                                                                                                                            September 22, 2008 Page  

 

5 

Ms. Spruill continued until Mr. O’Hanlon started the Disability Vote Coalition they were very lax 

about registering participants and ignorant of the process.  There are now intensive voter 

registration and election activities.  After the election there will be regular training of staff.  

Untied Cerebral Palsy did a direct mailing and sent flyers through the Access office and two 

clinics.  They are also sending staff to community groups and group housing.  The results have 

been gratifying.  There was a 10% response on the direct mailing.  1/3 said they were already 

registered.  The others asked for help with registration of absentee ballots.  Some needed specific 

information.  99 respondents needed help with registration.  They will contact everyone by phone 

to vote.  The staffs who are working on this are doing it part time, but the work equals a full time 

position.  Mr. Hockenberry asked if I vote for someone for deaf people will anything change in 

employment.  Ms. Spruill answered voting is the place you start.  You still need to get in touch 

with your elected officials.  County Executive Dan Onorato sends someone to these meetings.  

We need to create channels of communication.  If you go to a government meeting and request an 

interpreter, they need to provide that.  Mr. O’Hanlon added politicians speak a language of votes.  

They only hear about votes.  They don’t respond to logic.  We need to stop acting like we are a 

small group playing on elected officials’ sympathy.  They look at who votes in their race.  Ms. 

Spruill stated we have two weeks left to register people to vote.   

 

STAFF REPORTS 

 

Linda Lee reported on the back table were (1)the process she was going to use to develop and 

updated report, (2)the results of the meetings with the hospitals and (3)a new proposed 

questionnaire.  She also proposed shadowing people with hearing loss in hospitals and she asked 

everyone to help her get in contact with deaf, hard of hearing or deaf-blind people who have 

scheduled appointments with local hospitals.  

 

Mr. Noschese asked how she was planning to get into the hospitals.   Ms. Lee admitted that 

Emergency Room visits would be difficult. She wants to go with patients when they have 

appointments.  Ms. Nellans asked are you saying you want patients to contact you.  Mr. Noschese 

added they will need her contact number as well.  Ms. Lengle said she would need a waiver 

because of HIPPA regulations.  Mr. Hockenberry said he went to Allegheny General Hospital to 

find a new doctor.  The nurse wrote something down.  The hospital is responsible for getting an 

interpreter.  The Emergency Room is a different situation.  Mr. Nellans ask if respondents can 

type on the survey.  Ms. Lee said they could. 

 

VOX POP 

 

Mr. Hockenberry announced that after the meeting he can explain more about the jail situation.   

 

Mr. Parker moved the meeting to be adjourned.  Mr. Noschese seconded the motion.  The 

meeting was adjourned at 2:58 P.M. 

 

THE NEXT TASK FORCE MEETING:   

DATE:  October 20, 2008 

TIME:  1:00 P.M. 

LOCATION: Large Conference Room 

  200 Ross Street 

Pittsburgh, PA  15219 
 


